
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
DISTRICT OF DELAWARE 

MICHAEL KENT,  
 

Plaintiff, 
 

v. 
 
MAGELLAN HEALTH, INC., STEVEN J. 
SHULMAN, SWATI ABBOTT, 
CHRISTOPHER J. CHEN, KENNETH J. 
FASOLA, PETER A. FELD, MURAL R. 
JOSEPHSON, G. SCOTT MACKENZIE, 
LESLIE V. NORWALK, and GUY P. 
SANSONE,  
 

Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

 
 
Case No._______________ 
 
 
COMPLAINT FOR VIOLATIONS OF 
THE FEDERAL SECURITIES LAWS 

 
JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

 

Plaintiff Michael Kent (“Plaintiff”), by and through his undersigned counsel, for his 

complaint against defendants, alleges upon personal knowledge with respect to himself, and upon 

information and belief based upon, inter alia, the investigation of counsel as to all other allegations 

herein, as follows: 

NATURE OF THE ACTION 

1. This is an action brought by Plaintiff against Magellan Health, Inc. (“Magellan” or 

the “Company”) and the members of Magellan’s Board of Directors (the “Board” or the 

“Individual Defendants”) for their violations of Sections 14(a) and 20(a) of the Securities 

Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”), 15 U.S.C. §§ 78n(a), 78t(a), and U.S. Securities and 

Exchange Commission (“SEC”) Rule 14a-9, 17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-9, and to enjoin the vote on a 

proposed transaction, pursuant to which Magellan will be acquired by Centene Corporation 

(“Centene”) through its wholly owned subsidiary Mayflower Merger Sub, Inc. (“Merger Sub”) 

(the “Proposed Transaction”). 
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2. On January 4, 2021, Magellan and Centene issued a joint press release announcing 

that they had entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger dated January 4, 2021 (the “Merger 

Agreement”) to sell Magellan to Centene.  Under the terms of the Merger Agreement, each holder 

of Magellan common stock will receive $95.00 in cash for each share of Magellan common stock 

they own (the “Merger Consideration”).  The Proposed Transaction is valued at approximately 

$2.2 billion. 

3. On February 19, 2021, Magellan filed a Schedule 14A Definitive Proxy Statement 

(the “Proxy Statement”) with the SEC.  The Proxy Statement, which recommends that Magellan 

stockholders vote in favor of the Proposed Transaction, omits or misrepresents material 

information concerning, among other things: (a) the Company’s financial projections and the 

financial analyses supporting the fairness opinions provided by the Board’s financial advisors, 

Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC (“Goldman”) and Guggenheim Securities, LLC (“Guggenheim”); and 

(b) the background of the Proposed Transaction.  Defendants authorized the issuance of the false 

and misleading Proxy Statement in violation of Sections 14(a) and 20(a) of the Exchange Act. 

4. It is imperative that the material information omitted from the Registration 

Statement is disclosed to the Company’s stockholders prior to the forthcoming stockholder vote 

so that they can properly exercise their corporate suffrage rights. 

5. For these reasons and as set forth in detail herein, Plaintiff seeks to enjoin 

Defendants from taking any steps to consummate the Proposed Transaction unless and until the 

material information discussed below is disclosed to the Company’s stockholders or, in the event 

the Proposed Transaction is consummated, to recover damages resulting from the defendants’ 

violations of the Exchange Act. 

 

Case 1:21-cv-00352-UNA   Document 1   Filed 03/09/21   Page 2 of 14 PageID #: 2

f 

 

Find authenticated court documents without watermarks at docketalarm.com. 

https://www.docketalarm.com/


3 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

6. This Court has jurisdiction over the claims asserted herein for violations of Sections 

14(a) and 20(a) of the Exchange Act and Rule 14a-9 promulgated thereunder pursuant to Section 

27 of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78aa, and 28 U.S.C. §1331 (federal question jurisdiction). 

7. This Court has jurisdiction over the defendants because each defendant is either a 

corporation that conducts business in and maintains operations within this District, or is an 

individual with sufficient minimum contacts with this District so as to make the exercise of 

jurisdiction by this Court permissible under traditional notions of fair play and substantial justice. 

8. Venue is proper in this District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391 because defendants 

are found or are inhabitants or transact business in this District.   

THE PARTIES 

9. Plaintiff is, and has been at all times relevant hereto, a continuous stockholder of 

Magellan.   

10. Defendant Magellan is a Delaware corporation, with its principal executive offices 

located at 4801 E. Washington Street, Phoenix Arizona 85034 and an office located at 2650 

Camino Del Rio N, San Diego, California 92108.  The Company is a leader in managing fast 

growing, complex areas of health, including special populations, complete pharmacy benefits and 

other specialty areas of healthcare.  Magellan’s common stock trades on the NASDAQ Global 

Select Market under the ticker symbol “MGLN.” 

11. Defendant Steven J. Shulman (“Shulman”) has been Chairman of the Board and a 

director of the Company since 2019.  

12. Defendant Swati Abbott (“Abbott”) has been a director of the Company since 2018. 
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13. Defendant Christopher J. Chen (“Chen”) has been a director of the Company since 

2020. 

14. Defendant Kenneth J. Fasola (“Fasola”) has been Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) 

and a director of the Company since November 2019. 

15. Defendant Peter A. Feld (“Feld”) has been a director of the Company since 2019. 

16. Defendant Mural R. Josephson (“Josephson”) has been a director of the Company 

since 2020. 

17. Defendant G. Scott MacKenzie (“MacKenzie”) has been a director of the Company 

since 2016. 

18. Defendant Leslie V. Norwalk (“Norwalk”) has been a director of the Company 

since 2019. 

19. Defendant Guy P. Sansone (“Sansone”) has been a director of the Company since 

2019. 

20. Defendants identified in paragraphs 10-18 are referred to herein as the “Board” or 

the “Individual Defendants.” 

21. Non-party Centene is a Delaware corporation, with its principal executive offices 

located at 7700 Forsyth Boulevard, St. Louis, Missouri 63105.  Centene operates as a multi-

national healthcare enterprise that provides programs and services to under-insured and uninsured 

individuals in the United States.  Centene’s common stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange 

under the ticker symbol “CNC.” 

22. Non-Party Merger Sub is a Delaware corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary 

of Centene. 
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SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS 
 

The Proposed Transaction  

23. On January 4, 2021, Magellan and Centene issued a joint press release announcing 

the Proposed Transaction.  The press release states, in relevant part: 

ST. LOUIS and PHOENIX, Jan. 4, 2021 -- Centene Corporation (NYSE: CNC) 
and Magellan Health, Inc. (NASDAQ: MGLN) today announced that they have 
entered into a definitive merger agreement under which Centene will acquire 
Magellan Health for $95 per share in cash for a total enterprise value of $2.2 billion.  
The transaction, which was unanimously approved by the Boards of Directors of 
both companies, will broaden and deepen Centene's whole health capabilities and 
establish a leading behavioral health platform.  The combined platform lays the 
foundation by which the company will continue to invest and innovate for its 
members, enabling improved health outcomes and faster, diversified growth. 
 
The combination brings together the companies’ complementary capabilities in 
behavioral health, specialty healthcare and pharmacy management.  As a result of 
the transaction, Centene will establish one of the nation’s largest behavioral health 
platforms across 41 million unique members with enhanced capabilities to deliver 
better health outcomes for complex, high-cost populations.  Magellan Health will 
also add to Centene's leadership in government sponsored healthcare, bringing 5.5 
million new members on government-sponsored plans.  Magellan Health also 
provides specialty health services for 18 million third-party customer members in 
addition to Centene’s own members.  Furthermore, the transaction adds 2 million 
PBM members and 16 million medical pharmacy members, enhancing the scale of 
Centene’s pharmacy platform with leading capabilities in specialty drug 
management.  As part of Centene’s Health Care Enterprises, Magellan Health will 
continue to independently support its existing customers and pursue growth 
opportunities.  In addition, the transaction will create attractive shareholder returns 
through enhanced service capabilities, cross-sell opportunities and increased 
engagement with third-party customers. 

“There is a critical need for a fundamentally better approach to supporting people 
with complex, chronic conditions through better integration of physical and mental 
health care.  This has become even more evident in light of the pandemic which has 
driven a dramatic rise in behavioral health needs,” said Michael F. Neidorff, 
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of Centene.  “This acquisition 
accelerates our diversification strategy and enhances our ability to build next 
generation capabilities in our specialty care business by leveraging our scale and 
investments in technology.  Furthermore, we are very familiar with the range of 
Magellan Health's healthcare solutions as we have been one of their customers over 
many years, and our shared commitment to taking care of the most vulnerable 
populations makes this transaction a natural step.” 

Case 1:21-cv-00352-UNA   Document 1   Filed 03/09/21   Page 5 of 14 PageID #: 5

f 

 

Find authenticated court documents without watermarks at docketalarm.com. 

https://www.docketalarm.com/


Real-Time Litigation Alerts
  Keep your litigation team up-to-date with real-time  

alerts and advanced team management tools built for  
the enterprise, all while greatly reducing PACER spend.

  Our comprehensive service means we can handle Federal, 
State, and Administrative courts across the country.

Advanced Docket Research
  With over 230 million records, Docket Alarm’s cloud-native 

docket research platform finds what other services can’t. 
Coverage includes Federal, State, plus PTAB, TTAB, ITC  
and NLRB decisions, all in one place.

  Identify arguments that have been successful in the past 
with full text, pinpoint searching. Link to case law cited  
within any court document via Fastcase.

Analytics At Your Fingertips
  Learn what happened the last time a particular judge,  

opposing counsel or company faced cases similar to yours.

  Advanced out-of-the-box PTAB and TTAB analytics are  
always at your fingertips.

Docket Alarm provides insights to develop a more  

informed litigation strategy and the peace of mind of 

knowing you’re on top of things.

Explore Litigation 
Insights

®

WHAT WILL YOU BUILD?  |  sales@docketalarm.com  |  1-866-77-FASTCASE

API
Docket Alarm offers a powerful API 
(application programming inter-
face) to developers that want to 
integrate case filings into their apps.

LAW FIRMS
Build custom dashboards for your 
attorneys and clients with live data 
direct from the court.

Automate many repetitive legal  
tasks like conflict checks, document 
management, and marketing.

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Litigation and bankruptcy checks 
for companies and debtors.

E-DISCOVERY AND  
LEGAL VENDORS
Sync your system to PACER to  
automate legal marketing.


